


Table of Contents

November 3, 2021
Agenda Item #IIL...coooiiiniiiiiiii e Approval of Agenda
Agenda Item #IV.........ooooiiene .Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of October 20, 2021
Agenda [tem #V......ccoovvenne. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of October 20, 2021

Agenda Item #VL....ooooiiiiiiiiii General Manager / Staff Reports



Approval of Agenda
Agenda Item #I11



Board of Public Utilities
Kansas City, Kansas

BOARD AGENDA

Regular Session
November 3, 2021 — 6:00 P.M.

I. Call to Order
1. Roll Call

Ryan Eidson, At Large, Position 2

Tom Groneman, District 2

Robert L. Milan, Sr., District 1

Jeff Bryant, District 3

Mary L. Gonzales, At Large, Position 1

Rose Mulvany Henry, At Large, Position 3
I1I. Approval of Agenda
IV. Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of October 20, 2021

V. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of October 20, 2021

VL Public Comments
VII. General Manager / Staff Reports
L. Utility Disconnects Update
ii.  New BPU Bill Design Update
111. 2021 Third Quarter Financials
1v. Marketing / Communications Quarterly Report
V. Miscellaneous Comments

VIII. Board Comments

IX. Adjourn



Approval of Minutes
Work Session 10-20-21
Agenda ltem #IV



WORK SESSION MINUTES - WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met
remotely in Work Session on Wednesday, October 20, 2021 at 5:00 P.M. The following
Board Members were on the teleconference: Robert L. Milan, President; Mary Gonzales,
Vice President; Rose Mulvany Henry, Secretary; Thomas Groneman Jeff Bryant, and Ryan
Eidson.

Also on teleconference: William Johnson, General Manager; Angela Lawson, Deputy
Chief Counsel; Lori Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief Administrative Officer; Johnetta
Hinson, Executive Director Customer Service; Jeremy Ash, Executive Director Electric
Operations; Jerry Ohmes, Executive Director Electric Supply; Steve Green, Executive
Director Water Operations; Dong Quach, Executive Director Electric Production; David
Mehlhaff, Chief Communications Officer; Andrew Ferris, Director Electric Supply Planning;
Robert Kamp, IT Project Manager; Dennis Dumovich, Director Human Resources; and
Patrice Townsend, Director Utility Services.

A tape of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities.
Mr. Milan called the meeting to order at 5:05 P.M.
Roll call was taken, all Board members were present.

Item #3 — Approval of Agenda

A motion was made to approve the Agenda by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Mr. Eidson
and unanimously carried.

Item #4 — Board Updates / GM Updates

There were no updates.

Item #5 — 2022 Budget Workshop — Fuel and Purchase Power

Mr. Andrew Ferris, Director Electric Supply Planning, presented the 2022 Fuel and
Purchase Power budget considerations to the Board, outlining how they forecasted the
projected generation and the purchase power activity for the upcoming year. (See the
attached PowerPoint presentation.)

Mr. Ferris answered questions from the Board.
Page 1 of 2



WORK SESSION MINUTES - WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

Ttem #6 — Adjourn

A motion was made to adjourn the Work Session at 5:54 P.M. by Mr. Groneman,
seconded by Ms. Mulvany Henry and carried unanimously.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 2 of 2




































Approval of Minutes
Regular Session 10-20-21
Agenda ltem #V



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met
remotely in Regular Session on Wednesday, October 20, 2021 at 6:00 P.M. The following
Board Members were on the teleconference: Robert L. Milan, President; Mary Gonzales, Vice
President; Rose Mulvany Henry, Secretary; Jeff Bryant, Thomas Groneman, and Ryan Eidson.

Also on teleconference: William Johnson, General Manager; Angela Lawson, Deputy
Chief Counsel; Lori Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief Administrative Officer; Jeremy Ash,
Executive Director Electric Operations; Johnetta Hinson, Executive Director Customer Service;
Steve Green, Executive Director Water Operations; Jerry Ohmes, Executive Director Electric
Supply; Dong Quach, Executive Director Electric Production; David Mehlhaff, Chief
Communications Officer; Andrew Ferris, Director Electric Supply Planning; Glen Brendel,
Director Electric Production Operations/ Maintenance; Dennis Dumovich, Director of Human
Resources; Robert Kamp, IT Project Manager; and Patrice Townsend, Director Utility Services.

A tape of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities.

Mr. Milan called the Board Meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. He welcomed all that were
listening to or viewing the meeting. He stated that the Board felt it was necessary to offer the
use of technology for staff as well as for the general public. Those wishing to offer comments
during the Public Comments section could click on the raised hand feature at the bottom of the
application or window or press Star 9 and be connected by phone. As always, the public could
email or call the BPU with any concerns. The agenda could be found on the BPU website. If
they were using Zoom, it would appear on their screen. Mr. Milan introduced himself and the
other Board Members along with the General Manager, and Legal Counsel.

Roll call was taken and all Board Members were present via teleconference.

Item #3 — Approval of Agenda

A motion was made to approve the Agenda by Ms. Gonzales, seconded by Mr.
Groneman, and unanimously carried.

Item #4 — Approval of Work Session Minutes of Qctober 6, 2021

A motion was made to approve the minutes of the Work Session of October 6, 2021 by
Mr. Bryant, seconded by Mr. Eidson, and unanimously carried.

Page 1 of 4



REGULAR SESSION —-WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Item #5 — Approval of Regular Session Minutes of October 6, 2021

Ms. Mulvany Henry requested that it be added for the record, that the October 6, 2021
minutes reflected Mr. Johnson’s answer that the merit increases given in 2020 were not retro-
active to the beginning of the year. He clarified on October 7, 2021, that the merit increases
were retro-active to July 1, 2020.

Ms. Lawson explained the minutes would not reflect what happened after the meeting
and that Ms. Mulvany Henry’s comments would be included in the minutes for this meeting.

A motion was made to approve the minutes of the Regular Session of October 6, 2021
by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Ms. Gonzales, and unanimously carried.

Item #6— Public Comments

Mzr. William Johnson, General Manager, asked Mr. Robert Kamp, IT Project Manager,
if there were any visitors wishing to speak.

Mr. Kamp said that no one had their hand raised via teleconference.

Item #7 — General Manager / Staff Reports

1.  KERA Program Update: Ms. Patrice Townsend, Director Utility Services, updated the
Board on the application assistance and statistics for the KERA program. The Kansas
City Kansas Public Libraries and the Kansas City Kansas Community College
(KCKCC) were assisting, with the use of their computers, to help some customers with
the application process.

Mr. Johnson, Ms. Townsend and Ms. Hinson answered questions from the Board.

Mr. Mehlhaff gave a report on the resources that were being used to get the word out
on the ending of the moratorium.

ii.  KCKCC Economic Development Application: Ms. Townsend explained that the Board
had received for review, the modified request for $250,000 from the KCKCC for their
Economic Development Fund, which included the application and financial statements.
(see attached).

Page 2 of 4



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Mr. Johnson and Ms. Townsend answered questions from the Board.

iii.  Electric Production Quarterly Report: Mr. Glen Brendel, Director Electric Production
Operations/ Maintenance, gave the Board an update on Electric Production and
progress made with the use of the Maximo system. (see attached).

Mzr. Johnson and Mr. Brendel addressed comments and questions from the Board.

iv.  Miscellaneous Comments: Mr. Johnson said that he had emailed the Board to arrange
an Executive Session.

Mr. Jeremy Ash, Executive Director Electric Operations, reported on the BPU
presence at the International Linemen’s Rodeo that had been held the previous
weekend. There are teams from Germany, Jamaica, South America, as well as other
countries.

He said BPU had a Journeymen’s team that included, Eric Ferguson, Jake Janes, and
Trenton Overton. They also had two apprentices compete, Tom Wombwell and Joshua
Cook.

The BPU Journeymen’s team finished 4™ Place overall in the Municipal Division. Mr.
Ash expressed his appreciation for the support given to the teams to have the

opportunity to participate.

He also added that Mike Fergus had been invited to be on the Board for the
International Linemen’s Rodeo.

Mr. Ash addressed comments from the Board.

Mr. Johnson said that he would be reaching out with possible dates for the budget
retreat.

He also said that they were still working on putting information together regarding
stafting to answer an earlier question from the Board.

Page 3 of 4



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2021
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Item #8 — Board Comments

Mr. Eidson thanked Mr. Ferris and Mr. Brendel for their presentations. He also
congratulated the linemen on their great work at the rodeo.

Mr. Groneman also thanked the presenters for their informative presentations. He also
congratulated those who participated in the rodeo.

Mr. Bryant expressed his appreciation for the visual exhibits given by the presenters.
He also spoke about the steady successes in the use of Maximo. He also wanted to
congratulate Mike Fergus for being accepted to the Linemen’s Rodeo Board.

Ms. Gonzales congratulated Mr. Johnson for his recognition in Ingram’s Magazine. She
also congratulated Mr. Paul Crocker for the Meritorious Service Award he received from the

Kansas Section American Water Works Association (KsAWWA).

Ms. Mulvany Henry said that in answer to a question on chat asking about the contract,
Mr. Johnson said that he had sent an email to the Board to schedule an Executive Session.

Mr. Milan said he was sorry to miss the rodeo. He also spoke of the valuable
information presented by the staff.

Item #9 — Adjourn

A motion was made to adjourn the Regular Session at 7:11 P.M. by Ms. Gonzales,
seconded by Mr. Bryant, and unanimously carried.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 4 of 4










































Table Saw 30A 250V lph 2
Lathe I5A 120V 1ph 2
Drill Press 30A 250V 3ph 2
Jointer 20A 250V 1ph 2
Widebelt Sander 40A 250V 3ph 2
Band Saw 30A 250V 3ph 2
Molding Cutter 120 2
Surfacer 30A 250V 3ph 2
Radial Arm 30A 250V 3ph 2
CNC Router 20A 250V 3ph 2
Work Benches with electrical | 20A 115v 1ph - 4 plug Rec. 18

KCKCC Automation Engineering Technology Lab: high level estimate for the AET program power needs is 480v, 3
phase power with 1,200 amp service. This is based on the information we have and is our current best guess.

YMCA: 15,500 ft.2. Typical gym set-up with no significant equipment that requires high demand. 15,500 ft.?

Wyandot Behavioral Health Network: 15,500 ft.2 Normal office and conference rooms. No significant equipment that
requires high demand. 15,500 ft.2

Swope Health: 15,500 ft.2
~7 w/sf Medical bldg (gas heat) 125 kV A utility transformer 400 amp service at 208/3phase

~18 w/sf Medical bldg. (elec heat) 300 kV A utility transformer 800 amp service at 208/3 phase or
400 amp at 480/3 phase

Community America Credit Union: 5250 ft.> Normal electrical usage.
Other critical economic development factors:

e Current area is a blighted, largely abandoned downtown block generating no economic benefit or vitality.

o Project represents a significant reinvestment in the urban core.

o Center will be a catalyst for fully functioning offices, meeting spaces, and the direct provision of services will
begin utilizing electricity and water.

e Utilities will be metered separately and charged directly to the partner occupying the specific space.

When will a final proposed desien that provides an accurate depiction of electric and water usage requirements?

2™ quarter 2022

Will the college increase the mill levy because of this new construction project?

No

When will the Kansas City BPU realize a return on this economic development investinent?

2023 through Construction utility usage and fall 2024 facility becomes fully operational.



What is current progress on the fundraising campaign?

In-Hand or Committed/Projected: ;gg;{; oal
KCKCC 10,000,000
Sunderland Foundation 10,000,000
Community America Credit Union 3,000,000
Private Philanthropy-Alumni / Individuals 1,720,600
State of Kansas (Community Service Tax Credits) 197,500
Community Project Funds: Representative Davids —

Projected late Fall 2021 2,000,000
Federal EDA — Projected February 2022 5,000,000
TOTAL 31,918,100

Thank you for your consideration of this important request.
If you have any questions, updates and/or if additional information is requested, please contact:

Mary Hurla Spangler
Executive Director
KCKCC Foundation
mspangler{@wkckcc.edu
913-288-7161













Estimated New Electric Requirement (Monthly Maximum):
Capacity-KW See attached UTILITIES statement.
Energy-KWH See attached UTILITIES statement.
Number of Shifts per day 2
Workdays per week 6

Estimated New Water Requirement (Monthly Maximum):
Gallons See attached UTILITIES statement.

Please attach your engineer’s statement on requirements.

Employment Information:

Number of full-time employees six (6) months ago: 417

Number of current full-time employees: 426

Percent of employees who are Wyandotte County Residents: 34%
Estimated number of new full-time employees: 48

Estimated date of increased employment: 2023-24

oW =

Operation and Building Information:

1. Number of work shifts per day in operation: 2

2. Number of work days in normal work week: 6

3. Normal hours of operation in normal work week: 96

4. |s your facility heated with:  Gas Electric Equipment

5. Do you have a requirement for process energy (y/n): QO Yes ®No

Is your process energy gas or electric?

o

What is your facility’s size in square feet; 129,893

| GENERAL
1. Business Organization

QO Corporation

C Partnership

O Family Business

O Sole Proprietorship

& Non-Profit Corporation
O Government

2. Year established? 1923-Coll/ 1877-Fdn

BPU Form No: 1051758-B (3/21-PDF) 2



3. What is your primary type of business? (Please select one or more of the
fields listed below).

] Construction 1 Service

1 Finance 1 Technology

1 Manufacturing [1 Transportation

] Real Estate 1 Wholesale

] Retail Other (please specify)
Non-for-Profit Workforce training in Commercial Construciton

] Government Technology+Automation Engineering/ESL/GED/AAS

4. Whatis your principal market area? (Enter this as a percentage for each of
the following categories. The total of all categories should equal 100%)

City 100 %
Trade Area %
State %
National %
International %

5. What specific product or service does your firm provide?
Education (pre-college to associate level degrees and transfer programs) and workforce

development.
6. Is your firm minority owned? O Yes ® No
7. ls your firm an equal opportunity employer? © Yes ONo
8. Is your firm locally owned? Yes O No

If not, where are your corporate headquarters located?

9. Will you own this facility? ® Yes O No
10.Do you have multiple locations? Yes ONo

If yes, where? 7250 State Avenue - Main Campus
6565 State Avenue - Technical Education Center
6736 State Avenue - Auto Collision Repair and Auto Technology Center
6840 State Avenue - Fire Science Building

I LABOR

1. How many employees do you have? |500-999

BPU Form No: 1051758-B (3/21-PDF) 3



2. Of your total, how many part-time employees do you have? (Part-time
employment is 20 hours or less per week) 292

3. What is the average annual salary of your employees? $ 61,000

Business Services

Il LOCATION
1. What are your primary reasons for locating or expanding your business in
KCKs?
Rank your top four reasons:
1- Very Important
2 - Important
3 - Somewhat Important
4 - Not Important
Family ties
Area labor cost
Labor supply
Quality of life

Proximity to market

Utility costs (electric, water, and gas)
Financial incentives (loans or tax abatement)
Availability of land

Availability of raw materials

Educational resources

Profit potential of area
Other (please specify) driving educational, economic and social mobility

mESERRESS SN

IV HISTORY

1. Have you expanded your business facilities within the past three years?
OYes @No

2. Ifyes, did you expand at: []the same location
[T a new location

3. If the expansion was at a new location, did the old location remain an
operative part of your business?

OvYes (ONo

BPU Form No: 1051758-B (3/21-PDF) 4



4. Have you reduced your business operation in the last three years?

OvYes @No

5. If yes, what was the reason for the reduction?
[ Market decline
[Jincreased competition
[Jincreased production costs

[1Other (please specify)

6. What changes is your business planning for the next 2-3 years?

Change No Change
Mix of goods and services ® O
Expand facility ® O
Relocation @) G
Add employees ® O
Reduce number of employees O O
Change production technology O (@
Add product line ® O

Other (please specify) Two major expansions in workforce development include Commercial
Construction Technology & Automation Engineering, meeting MARC
regional goal to “support growth in the manufacturing sector.”

Please submit:

1. Your letter requesting economic development assistance. Please refer to
BPU Resolution # 5107 Economic Development Fund when addressing your

request.

2 Note: Taxability of these funds are on a company-by-company basis, it
will be your responsibility to determine if receiving these funds are taxable for

your company.

Name (Print) Mary Hurla Spangler Title Executive Director
Signature 77”*»‘?/%; 7%4/4 %%éb Date May 14, 2021
v 4 =

BPU Form No: 1051758-B (3/21-PDF) 5




































KAMSAS Ct"Y KS 85112

300 2w 107H AVE R 581 W

LAMTOL

T 3
i
TOPEKA KS 66812 o ant N 103 11115 a5 wl

toanta winmfiouse ks g
TOPEKA

HOUSE CF
REPRESENTATIVES
Aprif 19, 2021

Dustin Gale, Program Mznager
C5P Program Manager

Kansas Department of Commerce
1000 SW Jackson St., Suite 100
Topeka, Kansas 66612-1354

Dear Mr. Gale:

I am Valdenia C. Winn, Ph.D., 34" District Representative, Kansas House of Representative and a
member of the faculty at Kansas City Kansas Community College for over forty-five years. | proudly
submit this letter of support for the Kansas City Kansas Community College’s new Downtown
Community Education Center in Kansas City, Kansas. | fully support its request for community service
tax credits from the Kansas Department of Commerce.

The Kansas City Kansas Community College has served its community as an economic engine and
educational hub for nearly 100 years. As part of the College’s Centennial in 2023, KCKCC has charted a
bold vision to develop a comprehensive Downtown Community Education Center. The new 114,387
square-foot Downtown Community Education Center will serve as an anchor institution for Kansas City,
Kansas for generations to come. Designed to provide multiple levels of educational opportunities and
wrap-around services that help develop the “whole person”, the Downtown Community Educational
Center will promote social and economic mobility for its residents, provide services that help dismantle
barriers to education, and ultimately become a national model for future educational institutions across
the country. Through strong partnerships with community organizations, business, and industry, the
overarching goal of this project is to provide comprehensive education and services to prepare
individuals from the urban core and surrounding communities to immediately obtain employment in
high demand and high-wage occupations and to obtain advanced education. The College is committed
to breaking the cycle of generational poverty, providing hope and opportunity, and to lift the entire
community out from despair.

This endeavor is yet another critical investment in the community that will benefit all Kansans. Approval
to receive Kansas Commiunity Service Tax Credits will positively impact the Kansas City Kansas
Community College’s efforts to compiete the new Downtown Community Education Center. |
wholeheartedly support Kansas City Kansas Community College's efforts.

/Tg;fu%&{em & W hrsn

Valdenia C. Winn, PhD---District #34
Kansas House of Representatives
Kansas City, Kansas









the cycle of generational poverty, providing hope and opportunity, to lift an entire
community out from despair.

This endeavor is yet another critical investment in the community, for the benefit of all
Kansans. Approval to receive Kansas Community Service Tax Credits will positively
impact the Kansas City Kansas Community College’s efforts to complete the new
Downtown Community Education Center. I support their efforts,

Sincerely,

Tom Burrotg
State Representative, District 33
Kansas House of Representatives












Policy: 5.20
Hiring

Purpose

To ensure a fair and equitable recruiting and hiring process that results in the hire of a highly qualified
individual.

Definition

Hiring manager: a supervisor that is responsible for filling an open position and to whom the new employee
reports.

Policy Statement

Kansas City Kansas Community College (KCKCC) believes that hiring qualified individuals contributes to
the overall success of the College.

Hiring managers are directly responsible for the interviewing and selection process in conjunction with
KCKCC’s hiring procedures. Hiring Managers have a responsibility to support the College’s commitment to
equal employment opportunity (EEO) by assuring that the hiring process is fair, confidential, and free of
harassment and unlawful discrimination. Hiring managers should make every effort to ensure that

their search committees represent a diverse background of the College.

All individuals selected for hire will be subject to, at a minimum, a background check, reference check, and
review of experience and education.

The hiring of each applicant is conditioned on approval at a public meeting of the Board of Trustees. The
Board approves the employment, compensation, benefit package, and terms and conditions of employment.
With prior approval from the President, employees may conditionally, begin work prior to Board

approval when the candidate has completed all requirements for employment.

Board Approved: 05/19/2021



Policy: 5.49
Affirmative Action Plan

Policy Statement

In order to provide equal employment and advancement opportunities to all individuals,
employment decisions at KCKCC will be based on merit, qualifications, and abilities.

In order for KCKCC to comply with all laws and Executive Orders concerning discrimination, it
shall be the policy of KCKCC to take positive action to achieve equal employment opportunity
in all personnel matters. This policy governs all aspects of employment, including selection, job
assignment, compensation, discipline, termination, and access to benefits and training. This
policy is to be administered without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age,
disability, veteran status, or any other characteristic protected by law.

KCKCC will also make every effort to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1991,
unless doing so would result in an undue hardship. Disabled applicants will be ensured access to
the employment process, and reasonable accommodation to the workplace will be made to
enable qualified applicants to be employed.

Decisions regarding faculty, staff, and student employment, student recruitment, admissions,
financial aid programs, institution and related educational and co-curricular activities are to be
made without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, veteran status, or
any other characteristic protected by law.

Employees with questions or concerns about any type of discrimination in the workplace are
encouraged to bring these issues to the attention of their immediate supervisor and/or the Dean of
Human Resources/Affirmative Action. Employees can raise concerns and make reports without
fear of reprisal. Anyone found to be engaging in any type of unlawful discrimination will be
subject to disciplinary action.

Responsibility for Implementation and Evaluation

Responsibility for leadership in the development and implementation of an Affirmative Action
Plan rests with the office of the Provost. He/she, as the direct representative of the President and
reporting directly to him/her shall work with the Provost and the KCKCC Deans and others as
required in the coordination of their efforts in a coherent and systematic program. These
administrative personnel shall be responsible for carrying out all aspects of the programs within
their areas of responsibility. This shall include, but not be limited to, the investigation of any
complaints alleging non-compliance or any actions alleged to be prohibited under the various
Titles of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended and under Title I of the Educational
Amendments of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and the Americans with

27



Disabilities Act of 1991. The Dean of Human Resources/Affirmative Action shall assure the
Colleges' compliance with the Affirmative Action Plan and report any non-compliance to the
Provost.

Reporting to the Provost, the Dean of Human Resources/A ffirmative Action shall be responsible
for the following:

1.

'[\)

To conduct reviews to determine adequacy of employment of minorities and/or women, or
other areas of equal employment opportunity performance.

-~ AL

To report to the Provost concerning results secured in the implementation of the Affirmative
Action Plan.

To prepare required standard statistical reports and to serve as liaison officer with
compliance officers.

To serve as consultant and resource person in the development of recruitment programs,
selection procedures, and training programs of staff and supervisory personnel who may
assist in the implementation of the Affirmative Action Plan.

To serve as liaison between the College and minority placement organizations and other
minority group leaders.

To publish grievance procedures providing for a prompt and equitable resolution of student
and employee complaints.

To implement specific and continuing steps for internal and public notification that KCKCC
does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability,
veteran status, or any other characteristic protected by law.

Dissemination of Policy

The Affirmative Action Policy Statement shall be announced through the following procedures:

1.

Prominent inclusion of a statement of the policy in each announcement, bulletin, catalo g, or
application form which is made available by KCKCC.

Notification to each Admission and Employment representative, including members of
selection committees, of its policy of non-discrimination.

Posting the policy on bulletin boards or circulating internally in areas where employee,
students, and applicants for admission or employment will be reminded of the policy.

Notification during orientation of new personnel and in communication with minority group
leaders and other interested organizations that a non-discriminatory policy will be followed.

28



5. Include in all newspaper advertisement, catalogs, brochures, flyers, pamphlets, and other
printed publicity materials, the reference to KCKCC as "an Equal Opportunity Employer" or
"An Equal Opportunity Educational Institution."

Recruiting

Because preparation and educational backgrounds of minority persons and women for many
positions at KCKCC make it more difficult to recruit qualified candidates, intensive efforts will
be made to locate persons in any underutilized categories who are interested and qualified.

In addition, special efforts in recruitment and empleyment shall be made to overcome inequities
where deficiencies in numbers of minorities and/or women may have occurred in the past.
Factors of bona fide occupational qualifications will be considered as applicable.

Hiring

Where feasible, entry-level positions shall not require previous experience. This will provide
opportunities for potential minority employees to be employed and to move to hi gher-level
positions as experience is gained. Every attempt will be made to obtain the best qualified
persons from all sources for each job vacancy, without regard to race, color, religion, sex,
national origin, age, disability, veteran status, or any other characteristic protected by law. In
addition, the process of selection will be strengthened by:

1. Actively seeking to diversify the pool of applicants for employment.

2. Including, wherever possible, women and/or minority faculty and staff members on selection
committees for all positions.

3. Avoiding cultural factors in the selection process, while emphasizing qualifications and
capability in the field.

Transfers and Promotions

Job openings may be posted on employee bulletin boards in order to give present employees an
opportunity to apply for transfers or promotions that become available, without regard to race,
color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, veteran status, or any other characteristic
protected by law. Recommendations of the hiring administrator in charge of the area in which
the vacancy occurs will be reviewed by the Dean of Human Resources/Affirmative Action to
determine whether such recommendations are in compliance before such transfer or promotion
recommendations are made to the Board of Trustees through the Provost.

Internal Audit and Reporting Systems

An audit will be conducted at least once a year to record the race and sex of applicants and
employees.

29



The office of human resources shall be represented on all selection committees.

All interview documents shall be forwarded to the Dean of Human Resources/Affirmative
Action upon completion of the interview. These documents shall be filed with the employment
applications.

The Dean of Human Resources/Affirmative Action shall prepare a periodic listing of new-hires,
transfers, promotions, and terminations, indicating the reasons for termination, as may be
requested or needed either for internal analysis or for compliance with legal requirements.

Non-Discrimination

All advertisements, catalogs, brochures, flyers, pamphlets, and other printed publicity materials
shall contain a statement concerning the fact that Kansas City Kansas Community College is an
Equal Opportunity Educational Institution.

Decisions regarding faculty, staff, and student employment, student recruitment, admissions,
financial aid programs, institution and related educational and co-curricular activities are to be
made without regard to race, color, creed, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, veteran
status, or any other characteristic protected by law.

Reports and Record keeping Requirements Regarding Race--Emplovees

In order to comply with requirements of the U.S. Department of Labor Office of Federal
Contract Compliance Programs Equal Opportunity Survey of Federal Contractor
Establishments, KCKCC may require the necessary race/ethnic information by visual
observations or from employment records.

Race/ethnic categories are defined in the in the survey as:

e American Indian or Alaskan Native:
A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North America, and South
America (including Central America), and who maintains tribal affiliation or community
attachment.

e Asian:
A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, or
the Indian subcontinent including for example, Cambodia, China, J apan, Korea,
Malaysia, Pakistan, the Philippine Islands, Thailand, and Vietnam.

e Black or African-American:
A person having origins in any of the Black, racial groups of Africa. Also includes
persons referred to as "Haitian" or "Negro".

30



e Native Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander:
A person having origins in any of the original peoples of Hawaii, Guam, Samoa, or other
Pacific Islands.

e White:
A person having origins in any of the original peoples of Europe, North Africa, or the
Middle East.

e Hispanic or Latino (All races):
A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish
culture or origin, regardless of race.

Hispanic or Latino (White race only)--A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban,
Central or South American, or other Spanish culture or origin, and of the White race.

Hispanic or Latino (all other races)
A person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American, or other Spanish
culture or origin, and of any race other than White.

e Race missing or unknown--Applies to applicants only, where a resume or Application that
is screened is received without any racial or ethnic identification and no further contact is
made with the applicant.

31







































General Manager /
Staff Reports
Agenda ftem #VI

























































